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1  French Lesson 18 

French Lesson 18 

J’ai I have 
Tu as you have 
Je n’ai pas de I don’t have 
grand (m)/grande (f) big 

le garage garage
surtout above all/especially 
Excuse‐moi/Excusez‐moi Excuse me 
à côte de next to 

A: Excuse‐moi, comment tu t’appelles? 

Excuse me, what is your name? 

B: Je m’appelle ____.  Je suis _____ (put in your nationality).  

My name is ___. I am ___. 

A: D’accord. Où est‐ce que tu habites? 

Okay. Where do you live? 

B: J’habite en France à côte de Paris. 

I live in France next to Paris.  

A: Est‐ce que tu as des frères ou des soeurs? 

Do you have any brothers or sisters? 

B: Je n’ai pas de frères mais j’ai une soeur. 

I don’t have any brothers but I have a sister. 

A: Je vois. Est‐ce que tu as un chien? 

I see. Do you have a dog? 

B: Non. Je n’ai pas de chien mais j’ai des chats. 

No. I don’t have a dog but I have some cats. 

A: Tu es chanceux (chanceuse f)! J’adore les chats! Est‐ce que tu as une moto? 

You are lucky! I love cats! Do you have a motorbike? 

B: Non. Je n’ai pas de moto chez moi. J’ai une grande voiture rouge dans le garage! 

No. I don’t have a motorbike at my plae. I have a big red car in the garage! 

A: Tu es vraiment très chanceux (chanceuse f)! Est‐ce que tu aimes regarder les films américains? 

You are really lucky! Do you like to watch American movies? 

B: Oui. J’aime regarder les films américains, surtout avec l’acteur Tom Cruise. 

Yes. I like to watch American movies, especially with the actor, Tom Cruise. 

A: D’accord! Alors, allons regarder un film de Tom Cruise ensemble dans ta grande voiture rouge! 

Okay! Let’s go watch a Tom Cruis movie together in your big red car! 

Exercise: Vrai ou Faux? 

‐La voiture de B est petite et bleu (little and blue). 

‐B a un frère et une soeur 

‐B habite en Belgique 

‐B a deux chiens et il n’a pas de chats (B has two dogs and does not have any cats) 

‐B n’a pas de moto chez lui (at his place) 

‐B a une voiture rouge dans le garage 

‐B n’aime pas l’acteur Tom Cruise 

‐B n’a pas de chien  
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Verb Avoir – To Have 

Avoir is one of the most common irregular verbs in French. In addition to meaning “to have” it’s also used in a 

lot of common expressions. Here’s the conjugation in the present tense: 

J’ai I have J’ai un chien 
Tu as you have Tu as trois chats 
Il/elle/on a He/she/one has On a cinq voitures 

Nous avonsWe have Nous avons très faim 
Vous avez You have Vous avez trois enfants (3 children) 
Ils/elles ont They have Ils ont une jolie maison 

Note: Please be careful not to forget to link the following: nous avons, vous avez and ils ont. 

Expressions with Avoir 

Below you’ll see a list of expressions using “avoir”. These can be tricky to learn at first because you might be 

tempted to use être (to be)! 

j’ai de la chance I’m lucky
j’ai besoin de I need 
j’ai chaud I’m hot 
j’ai envie de…I feel like… 
j’ai faim I’m hungry 
j’ai froid I’m cold 
j’ai honte de I’m ashamed 

j’ai l’air de…I seem… or I look…
j’ai mal I have a pain, it hurts 
j’ai peur I’m afraid 
j’ai + number + ans I’m … years old
j’ai raison I’m right 
j’ai soif I’m thirsty 
j’ai tort I’m wrong 

Exercise – My car! 

Here’s a list of car brands. Tell me which city you live in and which brand of car you drive. 

Where you live: 
J’habite à New York 
J’habite à Berlin 
J’habite à Stockholm 
J’habite à Marseille 
J’habite à Londres 
J’habite à Rome 
J’habite à Tokyo 
 

Car brands:
une Alfa Romeao 
une Jaguar 
une Renault 
une Chevrolet 
une Volvo 
une Mercedes 
une Toyota 

 

Exercise – Offering a snack 

You’re offering a snack to your friend. Answer yes or no with I’m hungry (j’ai faim) I’m thirsty (j’ai soif). The 

negatives for these are “non, je n’ai pas faim” and “non, je n’ai pas soif”. 

Example:  A: Tu veux un sandwich? B: Oui, merci! J’ai faim!/Non, merci! Je n’ai pas faim. 

‐une crêpe 

‐un Coca‐Cola 

‐un hamburger 

‐un jus d’orange 

‐un croissant 

‐un jus de raisin 

‐une pizza 

‐une limonade 
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Review of Articles – Masculine & Feminine/Singular & Plural 

Before continuing with learning let’s do a quick of review of the various articles in French. These are very 

important to understand in the beginning as they’ll come up again and again in the future. Also, later in this 

lesson we’ll start learning the plural version of these articles so that’s why we’re doing the review now. 

NOUNS 

Nouns for people 

Nouns for designating male persons are almost always masculine: un garçon, un ami. 

Nouns for designating female persons are almost always feminine: une fille, une amie. 

Exceptions: There are a few exceptions here: Use “une personne” for “a person” regardless whether it’s man 

or woman and use “un professeur” regardless whether it’s a male or female teacher/professor. 

Nouns for animals objects & things 

There’s no specific way to determine whether if these nouns are masculine or feminine. At a certain point 

you’ll be able to start “feeling” which words are which gender. But, for now you’ll have to memorize which 

nouns are masculine and which are feminine. 

Masculine: un disque, un vélo, un ordinateur 

Feminine: une cassette, une moto, une affiche 

ARTICLES 

  MASCULINE  FEMININE

MASCULINE  Un a, an  Une a, an Un garçon, une fille

FEMININE  Le the  La the Le garçon, la fille 

Note: both le and la become l’ before a vowel: l’ami/l’amie 

PRONOUNS 

MASCULINE  il he 
    it 

Où est le garçon?
Où est le disque? 

il est en classe. 
il est sur la table. 

FEMININE  Elle she 
        it 

Où est la fille?
Où est la voiture? 

Elle est en ville. 
Elle est là‐bas. 

Exercise – Meeting famous people 

You’re with your friend at an event and you see a famous person. Tell your friend who it is. You friend will ask 

what they do and you will answer. Answer with “c’est un” or “c’est une”. Example: 

A: Tiens, voilà katie Couric! B: C’est qui? A: C’est une journaliste. 

‐Anderson Cooper/journaliste 

‐Angelina Jolie/actrice 

‐Matt Damon/acteur 

‐Dave Chappelle/comédien 

‐Dolly Parton/chanteuse 

‐Denzel Washington/acteur 

‐Kobe Bryant/athlète 

‐Lady Gaga/chanteuse 

‐Stevie Wonder/chanteur 
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Exercise – where are my things? 

Ask your friend the location of your things. Example: 

book/on the table: A: Ou est le livre? B: Le livre? Il est sur la table. 

‐racket/under the table 

‐computer/on the table 

‐bag (le sac)/next to the door 

‐poster/next to the bed 

‐TV/on the desk 

‐radio/under the table 

‐calculator/on the bed 

‐Tablet computer/next to the window (la fenêtre) 

Plural of Names & Articles 

Compare the singular and plural of the articles and nouns below: 

SINGULAR 
Tu as le disque? Do you have the record? 
Qui est la fille là‐bas? 
Voici un livre. Here’s a book. 
J’invite une copine. I invite a (female) friend. 

PLURAL 
Tu as les disques? Do you have the records? 
Qui sont les filles là‐bas? Who are the girls over there? 
Voici des livres. Here are some books. 
J’invite des copines. I invite some (female) friends. 

 

Plural Nouns 

In French the plural of most nouns is formed like this: 

Singular Noun + s = Plural Noun 

‐If the noun ends in s then the singular and plural are the same. 

                 Voici un français. Voici des français. 

‐In spoken French the s of the plural is always silent 

‐NOTE: des gens (people) is always plural. 

 une personne person Qui est la personne là‐bas? 

 des gens people Qui sont les gens là‐bas? 

Singular & Plural Articles 

The forms of the singular and plural articles are summarized below: 

  SINGULAR  PLURAL  

DEFINITE ARTICLE  le (l’) the 
la (l’) 

les the Les garçons
les filles 

des ordinateurs
les affiches 

INDEFINITE 
ARTICLE 

un a, an 
une 

des some des garçons
des filles 

des ordinateurs
des affiches 

Des corresponds with the English word some. While some can be omitted in English it must be included in 

French. 

Il y a                  des       livres sur la table 

There are         some   books on the table. 

Je dine avec                   des          amis. 

I’m having diner with    …            friends. 
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Exercise – Making the plural form START HERE 

Put the following singular items into the plural. Start with “Je vois…” (I see…) 

Example:  Je vois une copine 
                   Je vois des copines 
‐un copain 
‐une amie 
‐un homme 
‐une femme 
‐un euro 
‐une affiche 
 

Example: Je vois l’ami
                  Je vois les amis 
‐le voisin 
‐l’élève 
‐la cousine 
‐le livre 
‐l’ordinateur 
‐la voiture 

Exercise – Do you have? 

You’re in the shopping mall (le centre commercial). Ask if the clerk has the following items. Example: 

[Bag] A: Pardon, monsieur (madame), Est‐ce que vous avez des sacs? 

           B: Bien sûr, nous avons des sacs.  

‐TVs 

‐radios 

‐computers 

‐calculators 

‐posters 

‐guitars 

‐books 

‐notebooks 

‐pens 

‐pencils 

Exercise 

Describe what items you find in the following places. Use the following articles: un, une, des. Make sure you 

say all the items on the right. Example: 

Dans le garage  Dans le garage il y a une moto (des voitures). 

Sur le bureau… 
À la boum (party)… 
Dans la classe… 
Au café, sur la table… 
Dans ma chambre… 
Dans la classe de maths… 

limonade
stylo 
livres 
affiches 
moto 
professeur 
lit 
croissant 
voitures 
filles 
garçons 
table 
élèves 
ordinateur 
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Indefinite Article in Negative Phrases 

Compare the forms of the indefinite article in affirmative and negative sentences 

AFFERMATIVE 
Tu as un vélo? 
Est‐ce que Paul a une radio? 
Vous invitez des copains demain? 

NEGATIVE
Non, je n’ai pas de vélo. 
Non, il n’a pas de radio. 
Non, nouns n’invitons pas de 
copains. 

No, I don’t have a bike. 
No. He doesn’t have a radio. 
No. We are not inviting any 
friends. 

 

After a negative verb: 

       pas + un, une, des becomes pas de  

‐Note that pas de becomes pas d’ before a vowel sound. 

     Alice a un ordinateur.       Paul n’a pas d’ordinateur 

     J’ai des amis à Québec.    Je n’ai pas d’amis à Montréal. 

‐The negative form of il y a is il n’y a pas: 

         Dans ma chambre, 

             il y a une radio.          Il n’y a pas de tele.      There is no TV 

             il y a des affiches       Il n’y a pas de photos. There are no photographs 

‐After être, the articles un, une and des do NOT change. 

              Philippe est un voisin. Eric n’est pas un voisin.               Eric isn’t a neighbor. 

              Ce sont des vélos.        Ce ne sont pas des mobylettes. These are not mopeds. 

Exercise – Do you have? 

Ask your friend if they have the following itmes. Example: 

[un ordinateur] A: Est‐ce que tu as un ordinateur?  

                             B: Oui, j’ai un ordinateur/Non, je n’ai pas d’ordinateur 

‐un appareil‐photo 

‐une moto 

‐une mobylette 

‐une clarinette 

‐des diques de jazz 

‐des affiches 

‐un boa 

‐un alligator 

‐des hamsters 

Exercise – You don’t have! 

You can’t have everything. Say that the following people don’t have the following items indicated in 

parentheses. 

Paul a un vélo (un scooter) 

Il n’a pas de scooter. 

‐Julien a un scooter. (une voiture) 

‐J’ai une radio. (une télé) 

‐Vous avez des cheins (des chats) 

‐Vous avez des frères (une soeur) 

‐Tu as des copains à Bordeau (des copains à Lyon) 
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‐Marc a un oncle a Québec. (un oncle à Montreal) 

‐Natalie a des cousins à Boston (des cousins à New York) 

Exercise – Cleaning your attic 

Your friend is cleaning the attic. Ask if the following items are up there. Example: 

A: Est‐ce qu’il y a une racquette? 

B: Non. Il n y pas de racquette. 

‐des vélos? 

‐une guitare? 

‐des livres? 

‐une valise (suitcase)? 

‐des disques (records)? 

‐des photos? 

‐une télé? 

‐une table? 

‐des boites (boxes)? 

‐une chaise? 

Using “Si” for Yes 

In French if you’d like to contradict a negative statement or question use the word “Si”. 

Example: A: Tu n’a pas d’ordinateur chez toi? B: Si! J’ai un ordinateur chez moi! 

Exercise – Using Si 

Contradict the following phrases. Example: 

A: Tu ne parles pas anglais! B: Si! Je parle anglais! 

‐Tu ne parles pas français! 

‐Tu ne travailles pas! 

‐Tu ne manges pas assez! (don’t eat enough) 

‐Tu n’étudies pas! 

‐Tu n’aimes pas travailler dans le jardin (garden). 

‐Tu n’aimes pas faire tes devoirs (your homework). 

‐Tu ne fais pas assez de sports! (You don’t do enough sports/exercise). 

‐Tu ne manges pas bien! (You don’t eat well!) 

Using the Definite Article For Talking About Generalities 

In French the definite article (le, la, les) is used more often that in English. It’s used to refer to abstract nouns 

in the general sense. Notice the use in the following: 

J’aime la musique. (In general) I like music 

Tu préfères le tennis ou le golf? (Generally) do you prefer tennis or golf? 

Jacques aime le cinéma. (In general) Jacques likes movies. 

Nous aimons la liberté. (In general) we like liberty. 
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Exercise: How do you feel about…? 

Say how you feel about the following things using one of the suggested expressions. Then, ask me whether I 

like them by making a question: “David, est‐ce que tu aimes…? Then, I’ll respond. 

‐Je n’aime pas… 

‐J’aime un peu… 

‐J’aime beaucoup… 

‐J’adore… 

Example: A: J’aime beaucoup la nature. Et toi, David, est‐ce que tu aimes la nature? 

                  B: J’aime beaucoup la nature aussi. (Je n’aime pas la nature non plus [either]). 

‐la musique 
‐le sport 
‐le camping 
‐le français 
‐les langues etrangères (foreign languages) 
‐les maths 
‐la randonée (hiking) 
‐le ski alpin (downhill skiing) 
‐les sciences 
‐la lecture (reading) 
‐le cinéma (movies/cinema) 

‐la conversation interessante (interesting 
conversation) 
‐l’injustice 
‐la dance 
‐la photo (photograpy) 
‐la politique (politics) 
‐la poésie (poetry) 
‐l’histoire (history) 
‐la meditation (méditation) 
‐l'art moderne (modern art) 

 

Usage of the Definite Articles with Days of the Week 

Compare the following: 

REPEATED EVENTS: 

Le samedi, je dîne avec des copains. 

On Saturdays (in general) I have dinner with friends. 

SINGLE EVENTS: 

Samedi, je dîne avec mon cousin. 

On Saturday (this Saturday) I am having dinner with my cousin. 

To indicated a repeated or habitual event use the following: 

Le + Day of the Week 

When an event happens just once no article is used. 

Exercise: Answer the following personal questions 

‐Est‐ce que tu étudies le samdi? (Do you work on Saturdays?) 

‐Est‐ce que tu dînes au restaurant le samedi soir? Si oui, avec qui? 

‐Est‐ce que tu as une classe de français le samedi? Le mardi? 

‐Est‐ce que tu regardes la télé le vendrdi soir? Le lundi soir? 

‐Quelles activités (which activities) fais‐tu le samedi et le dimanche? 
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Exercises: Translate the following into French 

On Mondays I go (je vais) to the café.  

On Fridays I eat in the restaurant. 

On Sundays I go to the park (au parc). 

On Saturdays we go (nous allons) to the movies. 

On Mondays I go to work (au travail). 

On Thursdays I eat with my friends (mes amis). 

I have a French class on Wednesdays.  

I watch TV on Sundays. 

We watch movies (les films) on Saturdays. 

 

 

 


